N A T I O N A L

E N D O W M E N T

F O R T H E

H U M A N I T I E S



Extending the Reach:

Institutional Grants to Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities

Office of Challenge Grants

APPLICATION DEADLINES: June 1, 2000 and June 1, 2001

APPLICATION DEADLINES FOR EXTENDING THE REACH: Institutional Grants to Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities

Deadline	Notification	Projects Beginning
June 1, 2000	December 2000	January 1, 2001
June 1, 2001	December 2001	January 1, 2002

Send applications to:

Extending the Reach: Institutional Grants Office of Challenge Grants National Endowment for the Humanities 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Room 420 Washington, DC 20506

Telephone: 202/606-8309

E-mail address: challenge@neh.gov

NEH will not accept applications sent by FAX machine or e-mail.

NEH information, guidelines, and forms are also available on the Internet at http://www.neh.gov.

Table of Contents

Application Deadlines	. Inside Front Cover
The National Endowment for the Humanities	2
Extending the Reach	3
Extending the Reach: Institutional Grants	4
Goals of the Program	4
Eligibility	4
~ Uses of Grant Funds	4
Grant Period	5
Amount of Awards	5
Examples of Eligible Projects	5
Review of Applications	6
Criteria for the Evaluation of Applications	6
Grantee Responsibilities	7
Preparing an Application	8
What Help Is Available?	8
The Application	8
Instructions for Completing the Application Cover Sheet	10
Application Cover Sheet	13
Field of Project Categories and Codes	14
Budget Form and Instructions	16
Institutional Fact Sheet	23
Certifications	25
Customer Service Standards	28
Application Checklist	. Inside Back Cover
Equal Opportunity Statement	. Inside Back Cover

WELCOME TO THE NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES

"Democracy demands wisdom and vision in its citizens"—National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities Act of 1965

THE NATIONAL ENDOWMENT FOR THE HUMANITIES

In order "to promote progress and scholarship in the humanities and the arts in the United States," Congress enacted the National Foundation on the Arts and the Humanities Act of 1965. This act established the National Endowment for the Humanities as an independent grant-making agency of the federal government to support research, education, and public programs in the humanities.

The Humanities

The act that established the National Endowment for the Humanities says "The term 'humanities' includes, but is not limited to, the study of the following: language, both modern and classical; linguistics; literature; history; jurisprudence; philosophy; archaeology; comparative religion; ethics; the history, criticism, and theory of the arts; those aspects of social sciences which have humanistic content and employ humanistic methods; and the study and application of the humanities to the human environment with particular attention to reflecting our diverse heritage, traditions, and history and to the relevance of the humanities to the current conditions of national life."

Organization of the Endowment

Grants are made through four divisions (Education Programs, Preservation and Access, Public Programs, and Research Programs) and two offices (Challenge Grants and Federal/State Partnership).

Presidential Directives

The National Endowment for the Humanities participates in three government-wide Presidential Directives. Executive Order 12876 mandates federal efforts to help strengthen and ensure the long term viability of the nation's Historically Black Colleges and Universities, Executive Order 12900 mandates federal efforts on behalf of educational excellence for Hispanic Americans, and Executive Order 13021 mandates increased accessibility of federal resources for Tribal Colleges. The NEH encourages applications that respond to these Presidential Directives.

As a special response to these Presidential Directives, the NEH has instituted two new grant programs under the general heading Extending the Reach that are intended to strengthen the humanities at Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities. One will support institutional initiatives and the other faculty research grants.

EXTENDING THE REACH

Extending the Reach is a new series of funding opportunities designed to spread the support of the National Endowment for the Humanities to selected jurisdictions and constituencies throughout the United States. The guidelines in this booklet describe Extending the Reach: Institutional Grants to Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities.

In addition NEH also offers special support for humanities research and scholarship at Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities. Extending the Reach: Faculty Research Grants provide up to \$24,000 to support individual faculty members or groups of faculty members engaged in humanities research. The annual application deadline for Extending the Reach: Faculty Research Grants is April 10. For more information, contact the NEH Division of Research Programs, 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20506; (202) 606-8200 or er-faculty research@neh.gov.

During 2000 and 2001, the NEH also will be offering Extending the Reach grants to support humanities initiatives in the following jurisdictions:

Alabama	Alaska	Florida	Idaho
Louisiana	Montana	Missouri	Nevada
North Dakota	Ohio	Oklahoma	Puerto Rico
Texas	Washington	Wyoming	

Information about these Extending the Reach grants to selected jurisdictions may be obtained from:

Public Information Office
National Endowment for the Humanities
1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20506
202/606-8400 or 800/NEH-1121

E-mail: info@neh.gov http://www.neh.gov

EXTENDING THE REACH: Institutional Grants to Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities

Goals of the program

Extending the Reach Institutional Grants enrich the humanities at Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities by improving their ability to teach, conduct research, and support learning at the undergraduate level and throughout life. The grants may also better prepare recipients to gain future access to federal funds available for the support of these activities.

Extending the Reach Institutional Grants invite colleges and universities to undertake projects that build on and strengthen their existing institutional resources. Grants may enhance the humanities in an existing program or they may foster experimentation and new programs.

Eligibility

Extending the Reach Institutional Grants are offered to Historically Black, Hispanic-Serving, and Tribal Colleges and Universities, as designated by the White House offices charged with the implementation of Executive Orders 12876, 12900, and 13021. Eligible institutions are welcome to collaborate with other organizations, but the project director and the institutional applicant must be drawn from the group of eligible institutions. If you are unsure of your institution's eligibility please check the web site of the U. S. Department of Education at http://www.ed.gov/offices/OCR/2000minorityinst.html.

Uses of Grant Funds

Grants from this program may:

- provide scholarly humanities consultants who can assist institutions seeking to enhance and redefine humanities programs;
- support faculty members as they collaborate to strengthen humanities programs;
- enhance humanities programs by building ties among institutions of higher learning, among institutions of higher learning and secondary schools, or among institutions of higher learning and museums, libraries, historical and cultural societies, or other humanities organizations;

- prepare institutions to develop new humanities programs, or take advantage of underused resources; or
- provide needed library materials, computer software and hardware for the enhancement of humanities activities, and training for staff and faculty members in the use of humanities materials and technologies.

Grant funds should not merely replace funds already being expended on the humanities but instead should serve to augment and improve the institution's activities in and commitment to the humanities.

Amount of Awards

Awards will be given up to \$25,000. The requested amount should be appropriate to the proposal. Where the Endowment determines that an application merits support only in part or at a reduced level, the offer will be less than the amount requested. Constraints on NEH funding may also affect the amount that can be offered.

Examples of Eligible Projects

The following examples are illustrative only and suggest the range of content and goals appropriate for submission of a project.

- * A Historically Black College that has recently established professorships in history and literature seeks an Extending the Reach grant. It uses grant funds to hold a faculty retreat to plan new curricular offerings and to acquire new computer software and library materials. The agenda for the retreat includes an investigation into the feasibility of larger-scale transformations in the college's humanities core requirements.
- * A southwestern university that enrolls a significant number of Hispanic students seeks to add readings in contemporary Latin American fiction to its courses in Spanish language and literature in translation. Extending the Reach grant funds support faculty members as they meet with leading national scholars of Latin American literature over a two-week period to prepare curricula. The funds also purchase selected texts for the institution's library.
- * A tribal college uses a grant to increase its electronic media collection of American Indian materials to connect to the state's interlibrary loan system, and to integrate data from these sources (along with archival materials owned by the tribe) into its humanities curricula. Results of these efforts will be used to

enhance the college's web site and to support an expanded program of distance learning in the humanities.

Review of Applications

Each application is evaluated by knowledgeable persons outside the agency, who are asked to judge the quality and significance of the proposed project. Panelists represent a diversity of disciplinary, institutional, regional, and cultural backgrounds. The judgment of panelists may be supplemented by individual reviews solicited from specialists who have extensive knowledge of the specific subject or technical aspects of the application under review.

The advice of evaluators is assembled by the staff of the Endowment, who comment on matters of fact or on significant issues that would otherwise be missing from the review. These materials are then presented to the National Council on the Humanities, which makes recommendations for awards to the Chairman of the NEH, who by law makes the final decisions about funding.

Criteria for the Evaluation of Applications

Applications will be judged on the basis of the following criteria:

- the quality of planned activities and the potential of these activities to strengthen the humanities at the institution;
- the ability of the institution to carry out the proposed plan;
- the qualifications of project leaders and consultants; and
- the cogency of the plan to evaluate the results of the project.

GRANTEE RESPONSIBILITIES

Before any work is done in developing a proposal, the project director and the authorizing official of the applicant institution should review the following section on grantee responsibilities to determine if their institution is able to comply with these requirements. The authorizing official is also advised to review the material on certifications in the appendix to this brochure before signing Block 12 of the application cover sheet.

The grantee organization is required to

- have a sound financial management system that records separately within
 its general accounting system the receipt and disbursement of grant funds
 and cost sharing contributions and that monitors the expenditure of these
 funds against the approved budget;
- carry out project activities in accordance with the workplan provided in the approved application—changes in key project personnel, project scope or design, or in the arrangements to contract out project activities must be submitted to NEH in advance for review and approval;
- have in place a written organizational prior approval system for review and approval of all grant actions and expenditures that the grantee institution is delegated authority to approve;
- maintain adequate documentation of the time spent by all project personnel on grant activities;
- have an audit performed that meets the requirements of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 whenever \$300,000 or more in federal funds is expended during a fiscal year;
- ensure that all procurement transactions are conducted in a manner that provides, to the maximum extent practical, open and free competition; and
- acknowledge NEH support in all materials publicizing or resulting from grant activities.

PREPARING AN APPLICATION

What Help Is Available?

Prospective applicants are encouraged to consult with an NEH program officer in the planning and preparation of Extending the Reach projects. Consultation should begin as early as possible.

The submission of draft applications is encouraged and is offered as a service to help strengthen applications. This preliminary review is not part of the official review process. Drafts should reach the NEH at least six weeks before the application deadline so that staff may offer comment or counsel by telephone, e-mail, or letter.

Instructions for Preparing a Proposal

The application consists of seven major components:

- 1. Application Cover Sheet (see form, page 13)
- 2. Institutional Fact Sheet (see form, page 23)
- 3. Narrative statement: no more than eight typed, double-spaced pages that describe the purpose of the project and address the evaluation criteria listed on page 6. Topics covered in the narrative statement should include:
- goals for the project;
- description of the activities to be supported by the grant;
- the relationship of these goals and activities to the mission of the institution;
- related activities that will help fulfill these goals;
- planned use of consultants, if any;
- descriptions of institutional programs that will be supported by grantfunded acquisitions, if appropriate; and a
- description of the evaluation plan.

4. Budget form (see instructions, page 16). Requests for the acquisition of materials or equipment should include a complete list of the items to be purchased with grant funds. Equipment costing less than \$5,000 should be listed under Supplies, and over \$5,000 under Other Costs.

5. Project director's résumé

6. Appendices. Possible appendices include brief (two-page) résumés and letters of commitment from key personnel, work plan, and acquisitions lists (if applicable). Letters should document support for the goals of the project and commitment to implementing the results.

7. Copy of institution's current catalog

The application should include all of the items listed above and those also listed on the **Application Checklist** (see inside back cover). Because applications are mailed to panelists, applicants should not use covers, notebooks, or other methods of binding that add unnecessary weight to these documents. Please clip, rather than staple, application pages together.

The Office of Management and Budget requires federal agencies to supply information on the time needed to complete forms and also to invite comments on the paperwork burden. NEH estimates the average time to complete this application is eight hours per response. This estimate includes the time for reviewing instructions, gathering the necessary data, and completing the application. Please send any comments regarding the estimated completion time or any other aspect of this application, including suggestions for reducing completion time, to the Director of the Office of Publications, National Endowment for the Humanities, Washington, D.C. 20506; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (3136-0134), Washington, D.C. 20503. According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB control number.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE NEH APPLICATION COVER SHEET

Block 1--Project Director

Item a. Enter the name, title, and mailing address of the person who will carry out the project or be chiefly responsible for directing the humanities activities to be supported by the grant. This person's résumé should be included as part of the application. (Information about the institution also is requested in Blocks 2 and 11.)

Item b. In the space provided, enter the number corresponding to the project director's preferred form of address:

1-Mr. 3-Miss 5-Professor

2-Mrs. 4-Ms. 6-Dr.

Item c. Enter the project director's e-mail address and full telephone number with area code and, if applicable, extension. Whenever possible, one of the telephone numbers listed should be a number at which a message can be left.

Block 2--Type of Applicant

Item a. Identify Type, such as: educational (2-year college, 4-year college, etc.).

Item b. Identify Status as either Private Nonprofit or Unit of State or Local Government.

Block 3-Type of Application

This information is preprinted on the form.

Block 4--Program to Which Application Is Being Made

This information is preprinted on the form.

Block 5--Requested Grant Period

Enter the requested information on the cover sheet. The start date must be on or after January 1, and the grant may support full-time or part-time activities for up to three years.

Block 6--Project Funding

Enter here the appropriate figures from the project budget that is part of your application. For Extending the Reach: Institutional Grants, the "Total from NEH" may not exceed \$25,000.

Block 7--Field of Project

Fields are listed on the reverse side of the NEH Application Cover Sheet. Where multiple fields are involved, use U 8, "Humanities in General."

Block 8--Descriptive Title of Project

The humanities activities to be supported by the grant should be described here. Examples: Humanities Consultations to Support a New Curriculum; Faculty Study of Core Subjects in the Humanities; Feasibility Studies for a New Humanities Initiative; Library Acquisitions in Humanities Disciplines.

Block 9--Description of Project

Provide a brief description of the proposed project. Mention the major needs in the humanities that the project is designed to meet, and the activities that will address these needs. Do not exceed the space provided.

Block 10--Will This Proposal Be Submitted to Another Government Agency or Private Entity for Funding?

If "Yes," indicate the agencies or entities to which it will be submitted.

Block 11--Institutional Data

Item a. Indicate the name of the institution and the city and state of its official mailing address.

Item b. Enter the institution's employer identification number.

Item c. Indicate the name and title of the person who is authorized to submit the application on behalf of the institution or organization and to provide the certifications required in Block 12. This person is usually someone other than the Project Director.

Item d. Indicate the name, mailing address, form of address (see instructions for Block 1b), and telephone number of the person who will be responsible for the financial administration of the grant if an award is made. For example, at many universities the provost, vice president, president, or chancellor is the person "authorized" to submit an application (see item c), but the actual administration of the project--such as, negotiating the project budget and ensuring compliance with the terms and conditions of the award--is the responsibility of a grants or research officer. It is the latter person who should be listed here.

Block 12--Certification

The Endowment is required by government-wide regulations to obtain from all applicants certifications regarding federal debt status, debarment and suspension, and a drug-free workplace. Institutional applicants are required to certify that they will comply with the nondiscrimination statutes. These certifications, which appear in the Appendix to the guidelines, should be read before Block 12 of the application cover sheet is signed. More information on these certifications is available from the NEH web site, http://www.neh.gov,or from the NEH Grants Office, Room 311, Washington, D.C. 20506, (202) 606-8494.

Privacy Act. This information is solicited under the authority of the National Foundation on the Arts and Humanities Act of 1965, as amended, 20 U.S.C. 956. The principal purpose for which the information will be used is to process the grant application. The information may also be used for statistical research, analysis of trends, and Congressional oversight. Failure to provide the information may result in the delay or rejection of the application.

HUMANITIES

EXTENDING THE REACH: INSTITUTIONAL GRANTS APPLICATION COVER SHEET

OMB No. 3136-0134 Expires: 7/31/00

Project dir	ector		2 Type	of applicant		
Name and m	nailing address:		a. Type			
			b. Statu	IS		
1)	(first)	(initial)	3 Type	of application	 	
			Ne	W		
)	(state		de) 4 Prog	gram to which ap	pplication is bei	ng made
				g the Reach: Insti		•
Form of addr	ress:					ges and Universitie
Telephone nu	umbers:		11090	uested grant peri		
ice:/			From	n:	10:	
(area code)		(area code)	6 Proje	ct funding		
X:/	Email:			Outright funds	\$	
(area code)				ederal match	•	
				otal from NEH	•	
				Cost sharing		
			e. T	otal project costs	s \$	
Description	n of project (do not e	xceed space provic	ed)			
	n of project (do not e			rivate entity for t	funding? (If yes	s, indicate where and v
	oposal be submitted		ıment agency or pı	_		
Will this pro	oposal be submitted		ıment agency or pı	_		o, indicate where and v
Will this pro	oposal be submitted		ıment agency or pı	_		
Will this pro	oposal be submitted I Data rganization:		iment agency or pi d. Name	_	ess of institutional g	grant administrator:
Will this pro Institutional Institution or of (city) Employer iden	oposal be submitted I Data rganization: (name) httfication number:	to another govern	d. Name	_	ess of institutional g	grant administrator: (initial)
Will this pro Institutional Institution or of (city) Employer iden	oposal be submitted I Data rganization: (name) httfication number:	to another govern	d. Name	e and mailing addre	ess of institutional g (first) (state)	grant administrator: (initial) (zip code
Will this pro Institutional Institution or of (city) Employer iden	oposal be submitted I Data rganization: (name) httfication number:	to another govern	d. Name	e and mailing addre	ess of institutional g (first) (state) Form o	grant administrator: (initial) (zip code
Will this pro Institutional Institution or of (city) Employer iden Name of autho	Dposal be submitted I Data rganization: (name) httification number: brizing official:	to another govern	d. Name	e and mailing addre	ess of institutional g (first) (state) Form o	grant administrator: (initial) (zip code
Will this pro Institutional Institution or or (city) Employer iden Name of author	Doposal be submitted I Data rganization: (name) Intification number: Drizing official:	(state) (initial) initting this application a nondiscrimination st	d. Name (last) (city) Telephore FAX: (area or the authorizing official atutes and implementilix to these guidelines	e and mailing addre	ess of institutional g (first) (state) Email: email: enstitution (block 11)	grant administrator: (initial) (zip code f Address:
Will this pro Institutional Institution or of (city) Employer iden Name of author	Dposal be submitted I Data rganization: (name) httfication number: prizing official: (first) (litte) n. By signing and submittications regarding the	(state) (initial) initting this application a nondiscrimination st	d. Name (last) (city) Telephore FAX: (area or the authorizing official atutes and implementilix to these guidelines	e and mailing addre	ess of institutional g (first) (state) Email: email: enstitution (block 11)	grant administrator: (initial) (zip code f Address:

Field of Project Categories and Codes

The following categories and codes should be used to complete block 7 of the NEH Application Cover Sheet. If no exactly appropriate category is provided, please select the larger category that would include the more precise one. (This listing is strictly for use by the NEH staff to help retrieve information about applications and grants by subject matter. The listing is not comprehensive and is not meant to define the disciplines of the humanities.)

Anthropology	L1	Languages
Archaeology	Ũ6	Ancient
Archaeology	CO	Asian
Archival Manage-		Classical
ment/ Conservation	I1	Comparative
		English
Arts/History and Criticism	MA	French
Architecture: History &		German
	U3	Italian
Criticism		
Art: History & Criticism	M1	Latin American
Dance: History & Criticism	M3	Near Eastern
Film: History & Criticism	M 4	Slavic
Music: History & Criticism	M5	Spanish
Theater: History & Criticism	M2	- F
Theater. Thistory & Criticism	1112	Law/Jurisprudence
C :#	D2	Law/Jul ispi duence
Communications	P2	T. 0.1
Composition & Rhetoric	P1	Library Science
Journalism	P4	
Media	P3	Linguistics
		3
Education	H1	Literature
Education		African
MEAL OF CA. Alter	171	
Ethnic Studies	K1	American
Asian American	K5	Ancient
Black/African-American	K4	Asian
Hispanic American	K3	British
Jewish	K6	Classical
Native American	K2	Comparative
Native Afficican	132	French
· · ·	4.4	_
History	A1	German
African	A2	Italian
American	A3	Latin American
Ancient	AC	Literary Criticism
British	A4	Near Eastern
	A5	Slavic
Classical		
European	A6	Spanish
Far Eastern	A7	
Latin American	A8	Museum Studies/Historic
Near Eastern	A9	Preservation
Russian	AA	
South Asian	AB	Philosophy
South 7 tslun	1.22	Aesthetics
TT	U8	
Humanities	Uo	Epistemology
		Ethics
Interdisciplinary	U1	History of Philosophy
African Studies	\mathbf{G}	Logic
American Studies	G3	Metaphysics
Area Studies	CH .	Non-Western Philosophy
	G5	rion viestern ramosophy
Asian Studies		Dalinian
Classics	G7	Religion
Folklore/Folklife	R1	Comparative Religion
History/Philosophy of Science	Э,	History of Religion
Technology, or Medicine	GA	Non-Western Religion
International Studies	œ	Philosophy of Religion
Labor Studies	G4	i miosopny or itongion
		Social Science
Latin American Studies	GJ	
Medieval Studies	G8	American Government
Regional Studies	G F	Economics
Renaissance Studies	G9	Geography
Rural Studies	GC	International Relations
Urban Studies	G2	Political Science
	GB	Psychology
Western Civilization		
Women's Studies	G1	Public Administration
		Sociology

BUDGET INFORMATION, INSTRUCTIONS, AND FORM

Project Budget

The Budget Form and instructions for completing it follow.

Type of Grant Support

Extending the Reach: Institutional Grants are outright funds awarded by the Endowment to support the approved project. These funds are not contingent on additional fund-raising by the grantee.

Cost sharing is encouraged but not required on Extending the Reach: Institutional Grants. Cost sharing consists of the cash contributions made to the project by the applicant and third parties, as well as third-party in-kind contributions, such as donated services and goods.

Grant Period

Extending the Reach: Institutional Grants may support activities up to three years. The grant period encompasses the entire period for which Endowment support is requested. All project activities and the expenditure of project funds must occur during the grant period.

BUDGET INSTRUCTIONS

Before developing a project budget, applicants should review the sections on cost-sharing requirements, the different kinds of Endowment funding, limitations on the length of the grant period, and any restrictions on the types of costs that may appear in the project budget.

Requested Grant Period

Grant periods begin on the first day of the month and end on the last day of the month. All project activities must take place during the requested grant period.

Project Costs

The budget should include the project costs that will be charged to grant funds as well as those that will be supported by applicant or third-party cash and in-kind contributions (cost-sharing).

All of the items listed, whether supported by grant funds or costsharing contributions, must be reasonable, necessary to accomplish project objectives, allowable in terms of the applicable federal cost principles, auditable, and incurred during the grant period. Charges to the project for items such as salaries, fringe benefits, travel, and contractual services must conform to the written policies and established practices of the applicant organization.

When indirect costs are charged to the project, care should be taken that expenses that are included in the organization's indirect cost pool (see Indirect Costs) are not charged to the project as direct costs.

Fringe Benefits

Fringe benefits may include contributions for social security, employee insurance, pension plans, etc. Only those benefits that are not included in an organization's indirect cost pool may be shown as direct costs.

Travel Costs

The lowest available commercial fares for coach or equivalent accommodations must be used and foreign travel must be undertaken on U.S. flag carriers when such services are available.

Equipment

Permanent equipment is defined as nonexpendable personal property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of \$5,000 or more.

Services

The costs of project activities to be undertaken by a third-party contractor should be included in this category as a single line item charge. A complete itemization of the cost comprising the charge should be attached to the NEH budget. If there is more than one contractor, each must be budgeted separately on the NEH form and must have an attached itemization.

Indirect Costs (Overhead)

These are costs that are incurred for common or joint objectives and therefore cannot be readily identified with a specific project or activity of an organization. Typical examples of indirect cost type items are the salaries of executive officers, the costs of operating and maintaining facilities, local telephone service, office supplies, and accounting and legal services.

Indirect costs are computed by applying a negotiated indirect cost rate to a distribution base (usually the direct costs of the project). Organizations that wish to include overhead charges in the budget but do not have a current federally negotiated indirect cost rate or have not submitted a pending indirect cost proposal to a federal agency may choose one of the following options:

- 1. The NEH will not require the formal negotiation of an indirect cost rate, provided the charge for indirect costs does not exceed 10 percent of direct costs, less distorting items (e.g., capital expenditures, participant stipends, major subcontracts), up to a maximum total project charge of \$5,000 per year. (Applicants who choose this option should understand that they must maintain documentation to support overhead charges claimed as part of project costs.)
- 2. If your organization wishes to use a rate higher than 10 percent or claim more than \$5,000 in indirect costs per year, an estimate of the indirect cost rate and the charges should be provided on the budget form. If the application is approved for funding, you will be instructed to contact the NEH Office of the Inspector General to develop an indirect cost proposal.

SAMPLE BUDGET COMPUTA	TIONS				
Salaries and Wages Jane Doe/Project Director Clerical Support	[] 30%@\$45,00 [] 10%@\$14,00	0/academic yr. 0/yr.	NEHFunds (a) \$13,500 \$ 1,400	Cost Sharing Total (b) (c) \$13,500 \$ 1,400	
Fringe Benefits 16% of \$13,500 10% of \$ 1,400			\$ 2,160 \$ 140	\$2,160 \$ 140	
Travel	no. of total travel	subsistence transport.			
Within City	persons days [2] [8]	costs + costs = \$240	\$ 432	\$ 432	
Consultant Fees					
Consultant Consultant	6 days @ \$250/day 5 days @ \$250/day		\$ 1,500 \$ 1,250	\$ 1,500 \$ 1,250	
Supplies and Materials					
Books Software	12 sets at \$40 per 6 sets at \$250 per		\$ 480 \$ 1,500	\$ 480 \$ 1,500	
TOTALDIRECTCOSTS			\$22,362	\$22,362	
Indirect Costs					
10% of \$22,362			\$ 2,236	<u>\$2,236</u>	
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (Dire	ectand Indirect)		\$24,598	<u>\$24,598</u>	

^{*}Cost Sharing is **not** required on Extending the Reach Grants.

National Endowment for the Humanities **BUDGET FORM**

Project Director		If this is a r number:	evised budget, ind	icate the NEH applica	tion/grant
Applicant Organization		Requested	Grant Period FROM mo/yr	THRU mo/yr	
The three-column budget has been NEH funds and those that will be constructed to the construction of	ost shared. FOR NEH PURF should clearly indicate how	POSES, THE ONLY COI the total charge for each	LUMN THAT NEE	entify the project cost DS TO BE COMPLET determined.	s that will be charged to
When the requested grant pe must be developed on duplica			budgets for eac	h twelve-month per	riod of the project
SECTION A - budget detail for t	the period FROM	yr mo/yr			
 Salaries and Wages. Provide in brackets the number of persons salary charge for work done outs 	s who will be employed in the	ncipal project personnel	 For support staf 		
name/title of position	method of cost no. (see sample)	computation	NEH Funds (a)	Cost Sharing (b)	Total (c)
	[]		\$	\$	\$
	[]				
*	_ []	<u> </u>			
	[]		-		
	[]				
	[]				
		SUBTOTAL	\$	\$\$	\$
2. Fringe Benefits. If more than	one rate is used, list each	rate and salary base.			
	rate salary	base	(a)	(b)	(c)
	% of \$		\$	\$	\$
	% of \$				
		SUBTOTAL	\$	\$	\$
3. Consultant Fees. Include page	yments for professional and	technical consultants a	and honoraria.		
name or type of consultant	no. of days on project	daily rate of compensation	(a)	(b)	(c)
		\$	\$	\$\$	\$
					
				_	
		SUBTOTAL	\$	\$	\$

.

from/to	no pe	o. ersons	tot tra da	ivel			istence costs +	transportation costs	=	NEH Funds (a)	Cost S (b)	Sharing	Total (c)
	[]	[]		\$		\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	
	[]]]									
	[1	[]					_				
		1	[1						_			
		1]					_				
	`	1]			-		_	·			
	۱ .]		,					-				
	L	,		J		-		SUBTOTAL	•		s	e	
									_ \$	5	\$	\$.	
	<u> </u>								_ \$	<u> </u>	\$	\$_	
									_ \$		\$	\$\$	
									_ \$		\$	\$\$	
									_ \$		\$	\$\$	
Services. Include the	e cost of du	uplication	n an	d prii	nting	ı, long	distance or in the	SUBTOTAL telephone, equipm		rental, postage,	\$, and other	\$ r services	related to pr
Services. Include the ctives that are not in s on this form or on a	cluded unde	er other	n an	d prii	nting	ı, long gories	distance or in the i	telephone, equipm		rental, postage,	\$, and other	\$ r services	related to pr
ctives that are not in-	cluded unde an attachme	er other	bud	get o	cate	gories	or in the i	telephone, equipm		rental, postage,	\$, and other	\$ r services	related to pr
ctives that are not in s on this form or on a	cluded unde an attachme	er other ent. basis/m	bud etho	get o	cost	comp	or in the i	telephone, equipm	\$ sent r	rental, postage, subcontracts p	\$, and other	\$ r services itemization	related to pron of subcont
ctives that are not in s on this form or on a	cluded unde an attachme	er other ent. basis/m	bud etho	get of	cost	comp	or in the i	telephone, equipm ndirect cost pool.	\$ sent r	rental, postage, subcontracts p	\$, and other	\$ r services itemization	related to pron of subcont
ctives that are not in s on this form or on a	cluded unde an attachme	er other ent. basis/m	etho	get of	cost	comp	or in the i	telephone, equipm ndirect cost pool.	\$ sent r	rental, postage, subcontracts p	\$, and other	\$ r services itemization	related to pron of subcont

SUBTOTAL

\$ \$

i	item	basis/method of cost computation	NEH Funds (a)	Cost Sharing (b)	Total (c)
			\$	\$	\$
	-,				
	····				
		-			
		SUBTOTAL	\$	\$	\$
Total Dire	ct Costs (add subtotals	s of items 1 through 7)	\$	<u> </u>	\$
ndirect cost quested. Ri] Current in] Indirect coagency in	s are to be charged to the sefer to the budget instru- ndirect cost rate(s) has a cost proposal has been a tiem A and show proposal.	applies only to institutional applicants.) his project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE uctions for explanations of these options. have been negotiated with federal agency. (Consubmitted to a federal agency but not yet negotial posed rate(s) and base(s), and the amount(s) of it to NEH if application is funded. (Provide an esting	nplete items A ar ted. (Indicate the ndirect costs in i	nd B.) name of the tem B.)	
ndirect cost quested. Ri Current in Indirect c agency ir Indirect c be used if Applicant \$5,000 pe	s are to be charged to the efer to the budget instru- ndirect cost rate(s) has/ cost proposal has been an item A and show proposal will be sen and indicate the base a chooses to use a rate er year. (Under item B,	nis project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE uctions for explanations of these options. Thave been negotiated with federal agency. (Com- submitted to a federal agency but not yet negotial	nplete items A ar ted. (Indicate the ndirect costs in i mate in item B of f Indirect costs.) items, up to a m	nd B.) name of the tem B.) the rate that will	
indirect cost quested. Right and indirect control individual in	s are to be charged to the efer to the budget instru- ndirect cost rate(s) has/ cost proposal has been an item A and show proposal will be sen and indicate the base a chooses to use a rate er year. (Under item B,	nis project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE actions for explanations of these options. Thave been negotiated with federal agency. (Consubmitted to a federal agency but not yet negotiat losed rate(s) and base(s), and the amount(s) of it to NEH if application is funded. (Provide an estingalinst which it will be charged and the amount of not to exceed 10% of direct costs, less distorting enter the proposed rate, the base against which \$5,000, whichever sum is less.)	nplete items A ar ted. (Indicate the ndirect costs in i mate in item B of f Indirect costs.) items, up to a m	nd B.) name of the tem B.) the rate that will	•
ndirect cost quested. R Current in Indirect c agency ir Indirect c be used Applicant \$5,000 p computat	s are to be charged to the efer to the budget instru- ndirect cost rate(s) has/ sost proposal has been an item A and show proposal will be sen and indicate the base a chooses to use a rate er year. (Under item B, ion of indirect costs or name of federal agency	nis project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE actions for explanations of these options. Thave been negotiated with federal agency. (Consubmitted to a federal agency but not yet negotiationsed rate(s) and base(s), and the amount(s) of it to NEH if application is funded. (Provide an estingainst which it will be charged and the amount of not to exceed 10% of direct costs, less distorting enter the proposed rate, the base against which \$5,000, whichever sum is less.)	nplete items A articled. (Indicate the indirect costs in item B of f Indirect costs.) items, up to a mather the rate will be of the items.	nd B.) name of the tem B.) the rate that will naximum charge of charged, and the date of agreement	Tota
ndirect cost quested. R Current in Indirect c agency ir Indirect c be used Applicant \$5,000 p computat	s are to be charged to the efer to the budget instru- ndirect cost rate(s) has/ sost proposal has been an item A and show proposal will be sen and indicate the base as a chooses to use a rate er year. (Under item B, ion of indirect costs or	nis project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE actions for explanations of these options. Thave been negotiated with federal agency. (Consubmitted to a federal agency but not yet negotiat losed rate(s) and base(s), and the amount(s) of it to NEH if application is funded. (Provide an estingalinst which it will be charged and the amount of not to exceed 10% of direct costs, less distorting enter the proposed rate, the base against which \$5,000, whichever sum is less.)	nplete items A ar ited. (Indicate the indirect costs in it mate in item B of f Indirect costs.) items, up to a m the rate will be o	nd B.) name of the tem B.) the rate that will naximum charge of charged, and the	
Indirect cost quested. Right agency in Indirect cost be used a special	s are to be charged to the efer to the budget instru- ndirect cost rate(s) has/ sost proposal has been an item A and show proposal will be sen and indicate the base a chooses to use a rate er year. (Under item B, ion of indirect costs or name of federal agency	nis project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE actions for explanations of these options. Thave been negotiated with federal agency. (Consubmitted to a federal agency but not yet negotiationsed rate(s) and base(s), and the amount(s) of it to NEH if application is funded. (Provide an estingainst which it will be charged and the amount of not to exceed 10% of direct costs, less distorting enter the proposed rate, the base against which \$5,000, whichever sum is less.)	nplete items A articled. (Indicate the indirect costs in item B of f Indirect costs.) items, up to a mather the rate will be of the items.	nd B.) name of the tem B.) the rate that will naximum charge of charged, and the date of agreement	Tota
Indirect cost quested. Right agency in Indirect cost be used a special	s are to be charged to the efer to the budget instru- ndirect cost rate(s) has/ nost proposal has been an item A and show proposal will be sen and indicate the base a chooses to use a rate er year. (Under item B, ion of indirect costs or name of federal agency	nis project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE actions for explanations of these options. Thave been negotiated with federal agency. (Consubmitted to a federal agency but not yet negotiationsed rate(s) and base(s), and the amount(s) of it to NEH if application is funded. (Provide an estingainst which it will be charged and the amount of not to exceed 10% of direct costs, less distorting enter the proposed rate, the base against which \$5,000, whichever sum is less.)	nplete items A articled. (Indicate the indirect costs in item B of f Indirect costs.) items, up to a mather the rate will be of the rate will be of the rate will be of the items.	nd B.) name of the tem B.) the rate that will naximum charge of charged, and the date of agreement	Tota
Indirect cost quested. Right agency in Indirect cost be used a special	s are to be charged to the efer to the budget instruction of the budget in the bud	nis project, CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BE actions for explanations of these options. Thave been negotiated with federal agency. (Consubmitted to a federal agency but not yet negotiationsed rate(s) and base(s), and the amount(s) of it to NEH if application is funded. (Provide an estingainst which it will be charged and the amount of not to exceed 10% of direct costs, less distorting enter the proposed rate, the base against which \$5,000, whichever sum is less.)	nplete items A articled. (Indicate the indirect costs in item B of f Indirect costs.) items, up to a mather the rate will be of the rate will be of the rate will be of the items.	nd B.) name of the tem B.) the rate that will naximum charge of charged, and the date of agreement	Tota

SECTION B - Summary Budget and Project Funding

SUMMARYBUDGET

Signature

Transfer from section A the total costs (column c) for each category of project expense. When the proposed grant period is eighteen months or longer, project expenses for each twelve-month period are to be listed separately and totaled in the last column of the summary budget. For projects that will run less than eighteen months, only the last column of the summary budget should be completed.

•		First Year/	Second Year/	Third Year/		TOTAL COSTS FOR
Budget Categories		from: thru:	from: thru:	from: thru:		ENTIRE GRANT PERIOD
1. Salaries and Wages		\$	\$	\$	=	\$
2. Fringe Benefits					=	
3. Consultant Fees					=	
4. Travel					=	
5. Supplies and Materials					=	
6. Services					=	
7. Other Costs					=	
8. Total Direct Costs (items 1-	7)	\$	\$	\$	=	\$
9. Indirect Costs		\$	\$	\$	=	\$
10. Total Project Costs (Direc	t & Indirect)	\$	\$	\$	=	\$
				- 		
PROJECT FUNDING FOR ENTIR	E GRANT PERIOD					
I. Requested from NEH:		2	2. Cost Sharing:			
Outright	\$	(Cash Contributions			\$
Federal Matching	\$		n-Kind Contributions	i		\$
TOTAL MELIEURISMO			Project Income			\$
TOTALNEHFUNDING	\$		TOTAL COST SHARI	NG		\$
2. Total Project Fun	dina (NEU Eunda +	Cost Sharing) = \$_				
Total Project Puril Indicate the amount of outright						
2. Indicate the amount of cash tha amount third-party cash gifts that requirements.)	t will be made by th	ne applicant or third p	arties to support pro	ect expenses th	at app ines fo	ear in the budget. Include in this or information on cost sharing
Occasionally, in-kind (noncash) equipment that is donated to the p	contributions from roject free of charg	third parties are inclue. If this is the case,	uded in a project but the total value of in-	dget as cost sha kind contribution:	ring; e s shou	.g., the value of services or ld be indicated.
When a project will generate incincome that will be expended on b			eriod to support exp	enses listed in th	ne bud	get, indicate the amount of
3. Total Project Funding should equ	ual Total Project Co	sts.				
Institutional Grant Administrato indicates approval of the budget sunder "Project Funding."						
Name and Title (please type or prii	nt)		Teleph	one ()		
Traine and Thie (please type of pri	,					
			Date			

EXTENDING THE REACH: INSTITUTIONAL GRANTS

INSTITUTIONAL FACT SHEET

INSTITUTION:	
FEDERAL DESIGNATION (CHECK ONE):	
HBCU	
HSI	
TCU	
NUMBER OF FACULTY	% in humanities
f/t tenured	
f/T NON-TENURED	
Р/Т	
ENROLLMENT	
Undergraduate	Graduate
F/T	F/T
P/T	P/T
% majoring in humanities	% MAJORING IN HUMANITIES
COURSE OFFERINGS	
Undergraduate	Graduate
% IN HUMANITIES	% in humanities
LIBRARY	
HOLDINGS (# TEXTS; NON-TEXT RESOURC	ES).
% HOLDINGS IN HUMANITIES	 , ·
	_
OTHER RELEVANT INSTITUTIONAL HUMANITIES RES	SOURCES (SUMMARY LIST)

.

APPENDIX

Certification Instructions

Certifications. In submitting an application to NEH, all applicants are required to certify (by signing the certification block of the application cover sheet) that they are not presently debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in federally funded programs; are not currently delinquent in the payment of a federal debt; and, if the project is funded by NEH, will have a drug-free workplace program in place within thirty (30) days of the issuance of an award. Institutional applicants must further certify that they are in compliance with the nondiscrimination statutes and NEH's implementing regulations.

These certifications are material representations of fact upon which the Endowment will rely in making funding decisions. If it is later determined that the applicant knowingly provided an erroneous certification or did not comply with the requirements, the Endowment may seek judicial enforcement of the certification or may suspend or terminate the award.

Applicants who cannot certify regarding compliance with the nondiscrimination statutes or the establishment of a drug-free workplace program are not eligible to apply for funding from NEH. Although applicants who are unable to certify regarding federal debt status or debarment and suspension are technically eligible to submit an application to NEH as long as they provide a written explanation of their status, they are advised to discuss their particular situation with program staff before beginning work on their proposal.

Applicants who plan to use awards to fund subgrants, contracts, and subcontracts should be aware that they must receive the following certifications from applicants to grant programs and those who bid on contracts:

- (1) certification of compliance with the nondiscrimination statutes from institutional applicants and contractors, and
- (2) certification regarding lobbying from those requesting in excess of \$100,000 in grant funds, and
- (3) certification regarding debarment and suspension from applicants to grant programs (regardless of the amount requested) and from potential contractors and subcontractors who will receive \$100,000 or more in grant funds. Applicants are also required to include without modification the following wording in solicitations for all grant proposals and for contracts that are expected to equal or exceed \$100,000:

- (a) The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
- (b) Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

Additional information on the certification requirements is available on the NEH web site, http://www.neh.gov, or from the NEH Grants Office, Room 311, Washington, D.C. 20506 (202/606-8494).

The text of the certifications follows:

- 1. Certification Regarding the Nondiscrimination Statutes and Implementing Regulations (Applies to Recipients Other than Individuals). The applicant certifies that it will comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and their implementing regulations: (a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) which provides that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the applicant received federal financial assistance; (b) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap in programs and activities receiving federal financial assistance; (c) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and activities receiving federal financial assistance; and (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq.) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in programs and activities receiving federal financial assistance, except that actions which reasonably take age into account as a factor necessary for the normal operation or achievement of any statutory objective of the project or activity shall not violate this statute.
- 2. Certification Regarding Federal Debt Status. The applicant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it is not delinquent in the repayment of any federal debt.
- 3. Certification Regarding Debarment and Suspension (45 CFR 1169). The prospective primary participant (applicant) certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: (a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency; (b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; (c) are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b) of this certification; and (d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

4. Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements (Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988).

- (A) The grantee certifies that it will provide a drug-free workplace by
 (a) publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture,
 distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the
 grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for
 violation of such prohibitions;
- (b) establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about (1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; (2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; (3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and (4) the penalties that may be imposed on employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace;
- (c) making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
- (d) notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the employee will (1) abide by the terms of the statement; and (2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace not later than five calendar days after such conviction;
- (e) notifying the agency in writing within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notices shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant; (f) taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted: (1) taking actions against a subparagraph with a supparagraph action of the proposed such as a supparagraph of the supparagraph action are supparagraph.
- ing appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or (2) requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
- rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
- (g) making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).
- (B) The applicant shall either identify the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with the project in the application material or shall keep this information on file in its office so that it is available for federal inspection. The street address, city, county, state, and zip code should be provided whenever possible.

Customer Service Standards

In assisting you as a prospective applicant, you can expect us to:

- o respond courteously and quickly to your requests for information about our grant programs;
- o be able to describe the programs that best suit your needs;
- o provide application instructions and forms that are clear and easy to use;
- o offer prompt and thoughtful advice and guidance in preparing your application;
- o explain accurately the procedures that would be used to evaluate your application and tell you when you could expect a decision.

In assisting you as an applicant, you can expect us to:

- o ensure that the evaluation of your application is fair, expeditious, and informed by the expert judgments of your peers;
- o notify you promptly of the decision on your application;
- o provide substantive reasons for the decision reached on your application;
- o give you helpful advice, if you are unsuccessful, on revising or resubmitting your application.

In assisting you as a grantee, you can expect us to:

- o provide you with an award document that is clear and easy to understand and that sets forth sensible reporting requirements;
- o provide the names of our staff members who will serve as contacts for your reports and for any assistance you may need;
- o answer promptly and satisfactorily all requests for information on NEH policies and procedures;
- o read and acknowledge promptly your reports on grant activities;
- o maintain a professional, helpful relationship with you as you carry your project to completion.

APPLICATION CHECKLIST

1.	Ten	copies (o	ne original plus nine duplicates) of the application
	pac	kage, each	copy including, in this order,
		a)	the NEH Application Cover Sheet (original signed by authorizing official);
		b)	one-page institutional fact sheet*;
			the narrative proposal (not to exceed eight typed,
			double-spaced pages);
		d)	budget form**;
		e)	project director's résumé;
		f)	appendices.
	2.	A set, clip	oped together, of one additional copy of the following:
		— NEH	Application Cover Sheet
		— Instit	utional Fact Summary
	3.	А сору о	f the current college/university catalog
* Please	use	the form p	provided on page 23
* *Pleas	se use	the form	provided on page 17
NEH wi	ll not	accept ap	plications sent by FAX machine or electronic mail.
Send ap	plica	tions to:	
Extendi	ng the	e Reach: Ir	nstitutional Grants
Office o	f Cha	llenge Gra	nts
Nationa	l End	owment fo	or the Humanities
1100 Pe	nnsyl	vania Ave	nue, N.W., Room 420
Washing	gton, Ì	DC 20506	

EQUAL

OPPORTUNITY

STATEMENT

Endowment programs do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, disability, or age. For further information, write to Equal Employment Opportunity Officer, National Endowment for the Humanities, 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, DC 20506. TDD: 202/606-8282 (this is a special Telephone Device for the Deaf).

National Endowment for the Humanities Extending the Reach Institutional Grants Office of Challenge Grants, Room 420 1100 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20506

